

How City Council Works

January 2015

The Committee of Seventy

Eight Penn Center 1628 JFK Boulevard Suite 1002 Philadelphia, PA 19103 www.seventy.org p. 215-557-3600 @Committeeof70



Contents

Who We Are
Introduction – How to Use this Manual 4
Chapter 1 – What is City Council?5
Chapter 2 – Who is on City Council?6
Chapter 3 – How is City Council structured? 8
Council President
Standing Committees
Majority and Minority Party Leadership8
Chief Clerk
Chapter 4 – What does City Council Do?10
Creating and Amending City Laws 10
Step-by-Step Overview of the Legislative Process10
Resolutions
Inquiries and Investigations13
Planning City Finances
Passing the Annual Budget
Budget Work Year-Round 16
Chapter 5 – What are Full City Council Meetings like?16
Order of Business at a Full Council Meeting16
Public Participation in Full Council Meetings17
Resources 19
Philadelphia19
Pennsylvania 20



Who We Are

The Committee of Seventy has been called a "government watchdog," "the elections people" and a "think tank." In fact, we are all of these and much more. Seventy is a non-partisan, not-for-profit group headed by many of the region's most respected business, legal and civic leaders. We strive to be a catalyst for reform in Philadelphia and the surrounding region. Our goal is to use our voice and our influence to provoke real change.

Since Seventy was established in 1904, we have combated corruption, monitored elections and fought for government to be more effective and efficient. We raise public awareness about complex issues in language non-experts can relate to. We are willing to take the lead on tough issues, collaborate with like-minded organizations and make noise to call attention to opportunities for reform. Our goal is not just good government for its own sake, but fundamental change that will help Philadelphia grow and prosper.

Seventy's drive to improve government takes many forms – including educating citizens through our *How Philly Works* series, our comprehensive website and social media, as well as encouraging well-qualified candidates to run for office. We hope that you find this manual to be a useful and informative first step in your own public service journey.



Introduction - How to Use this Manual

Philadelphia's City Council, the legislative branch of the municipal government, enacts the city's laws and resolutions, holds hearings, and approves its operating budget and members of city boards and commissions. This guide to how Council is structured and operates is detailed – wonky, in fact – but it's not comprehensive, so if you need more information or some clarification, visit Council's website, phlcouncil.com.

We've done our best to turn complicated Pennsylvania Election Code and political party rules into this easy-to-follow and easy-to-read manual. However, it is impossible to provide answers for every situation. If you can't find the answer you are looking for, please contact the Committee of Seventy's Senior Policy Analyst, Patrick Christmas, at 215-557-3600, ext. 114 or pchristmas@seventy.org.

The information in this manual is up to date as of January 2015.



Chapter 1 – What is City Council?

The structure of <u>Philadelphia municipal government</u> is laid out in the <u>Philadelphia Home Rule</u> <u>Charter</u>, the city's "constitution." The Philadelphia Home Rule Charter establishes City Council as the legislative branch of government and grants Council certain powers and responsibilities. Council's most significant role is to enact laws and to adopt the city's operating budget. Council also has the authority to decide who sits on various city boards and commissions. As a result, City Council has significant influence in shaping city policies and programs.

City Council is composed of <u>17 members</u>, each elected every four years. The seven "at-large" members are elected by citywide popular vote while the other 10 are district representatives, elected by voters in a specific part of the city called a Council district. Each of Philadelphia's <u>10</u> <u>Council districts</u> has about 150,000 residents. To preserve bipartisan representation, no political party can have more than five at-large Council members. This guarantees that at least two of the seven at-large Council seats will be held by members of a minority party or who are independent. There is no such condition for district Council seats.

Council members must be 25 years old, citizens of the United States and residents of Philadelphia for one year before taking office. District Council members must also be residents of their Council districts for one year prior to their election, and remain a resident as long as they are in office.

City Council meets regularly from September to June, with a one-month winter break. When in session, Council meets as a full body on <u>Thursday mornings at 10:00 a.m. in Room 400 of</u> <u>Philadelphia City Hall</u>. Council also has <u>22 standing committees</u>, where selected members meet to study and discuss bills in-depth and to hear testimony from the public and other government officials.

City Council has an annual operating budget of just more than \$16 million and a staff of close to 195. (Ironically, though one of City Council's main responsibilities is to oversee the use of taxpayer dollars, the details of its own budget are unclear.)



Chapter 2 – Who is on City Council?

District Council Members

<u>Mark Squilla</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 332 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215)686-3458, (215)686-3459
<u>Kenyatta Johnson</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 580 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215)686-3412, (215)686-3413
<u>Jannie Blackwell</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 408 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3418, (215) 686-3419
<u>Curtis Jones, Jr.</u> (D) Majority Leader	City Hall Room 404 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3416, (215) 686-3417
Darrell Clarke (D) Council President	City Hall, Room 494 District Office – City Hall, Room 313 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215)686-2070, (215)686-1954
<u>Bob Henon</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 484 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3444, (215) 686-3445
<u>Maria Quiñones Sánchez</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 592 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3448, (215) 686-3449
<u>Cindy Bass</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 594 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3424, (215) 686-3425
<u>Marian Tasco</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 577 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3454, (215) 686-3455
<u>Brian J. O'Neill</u> (R) Minority Leader	City Hall, Room 562 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3422, (215) 686-3423
	Kenyatta Johnson (D) Jannie Blackwell (D) Curtis Jones, Jr. (D) Majority Leader Darrell Clarke (D) Council President Bob Henon (D) Maria Quiñones Sánchez (D) Cindy Bass (D) Marian Tasco (D)

*Visit <u>www.seventy.org</u> for City Council district maps. At-large Council members represent the entire city.



Chief Clerk

At-large Council Members

<u>a</u>	
<u>W. Wilson Goode, Jr.</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 316 Philadelphia, PA 19107 (215) 686-3414, (215) 686-3415
<u>William K. Greenlee</u> (D) Majority Deputy Whip	City Hall, Room 508 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3446, (215) 686-3447
<u>James Kenney</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 330 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3450, (215) 686-3451
<u>Dennis O'Brien</u> (R)	City Hall, Room 582 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3440, (215) 686-3441
<u>David Oh</u> (R) Minority Whip	City Hall, Room 319 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3452 (215) 686-3453
<u>Blondell Reynolds Brown</u> (D) Majority Whip	City Hall, Room 581 Philadelphia, PA 19107 (215) 686-3438, (215) 686-3439
<u>Ed Neilson</u> (D)	City Hall, Room 312 Philadelphia, PA 19107-3290 (215) 686-3420, (215) 686-3421
Michael Decker	City Hall, Room 402 Philadelphia, PA 19107 (215) 686-3410, (215) 686-3411



Chapter 3 – How is City Council structured?

Council President

The President of City Council is elected by the 17 members of Council at the beginning of each four-year Council term and typically serves until the next election. Darrell Clarke, a Democrat who represents the Fifth District, was elected Council President at the beginning of 2012.

The <u>Philadelphia Home Rule Charter</u> and <u>Rules of Council</u> grant the President extensive powers to shape and direct the work of Council. For example, the president is in charge of scheduling and running Council meetings, organizing and appointing the chairs and members of Council's committees and directing legislation to the committees. The president also has the authority to dissolve committees.

In addition, the president enforces the Rules of City Council, which establish how Council conducts its business. The Rules of City Council are drafted and approved by the 17 Council members at the beginning of each four-year term. The president also has to certify (by signing) all ordinances, orders, resolutions and petitions adopted by Council, as well as any leases or contracts requiring Council authorization.

Standing Committees

Most, but not all, of Council's <u>standing committees</u> are organized into specific policy areas. The committees each have a chair, vice chair and a minimum of five members. They consider bills related to their policy areas that are directed to them by the Council President. The committees report back to the full Council on their work.

The standing committees have special rules for appointing leadership and members. All 17 Council members serve on the <u>Committee on Ethics</u>, for example, which is chaired by the Council President. The President, in consultation with the Majority Leadership, appoints all other standing committees and the Chairperson and Vice Chairperson of each.

Majority and Minority Party Leadership

Each political party represented in City Council must nominate and appoint two members to serve as their top leaders: the majority/minority leader and the majority/minority whip. In 2012, City Council added a new Democratic leadership position, Deputy Majority Whip, which is filled by At-Large Councilman William Greenlee.

Council's leadership works with the Council President to decide where to direct legislation, which bill will be granted a hearing, and when the hearing will be held. They are also consulted



by the Council President on appointments to committees and, in some cases, are designated themselves to serve on a committee. The leadership also meets regularly with representatives of the mayor's administration to discuss issues of shared concern. Unlike party leaders in many other legislative bodies, Council's leaders usually don't count votes. That job is typically performed by the prime sponsor(s) of a bill.

Chief Clerk

The Chief Clerk handles the administrative responsibilities of City Council, which include reading, collecting and distributing all legislative documents (bills, resolutions and official communications to and from Council).

The Clerk is not elected by the voters, but is instead chosen by the 17 Council members at the beginning of each four-year term and serves at their discretion. The current Chief Clerk is Michael Decker. You can contact him at 215-686-3410 or 215-686-3411.



Chapter 4 - what does city council D

Creating and Amending City Laws

As a legislative body, City Council drafts, debates, and enacts legislation that adds to or amends the body of law pertaining exclusively to the city of Philadelphia, known as the City Code. These local laws, called "ordinances," work in conjunction with state and federal law and with the Philadelphia Home Rule Charter to govern the everyday lives of Philadelphia residents and taxpayers.

Proposals brought before City Council to create and amend city law are called "bills." However, much of the work that is required to transform a bill into law happens long before a bill is introduced in City Council. Council members may spend months - sometimes years - drafting proposals, meeting with constituents and other interested parties, and making alliances with other Council members to gather support.

The actual legislative process – which means the steps that must take place between the time a bill is introduced in Council and when it actually becomes part of the City Code – is often more difficult than it sounds. It requires approval by City Council and action by the mayor (although that action is not necessarily "approval," as we will describe later).

The process for adding provisions to, or amending, the Philadelphia Home Rule Charter requires an additional step: approval by the voters. Proposed Charter additions or amendments are submitted in the form of ballot questions at a primary or general election. If approved by a majority of the voters who cast their vote on a specific ballot question, the addition or amendment becomes a permanent part of the Home Rule Charter.

Step-by-Step Overview of the Legislative Process

• Introducing a Bill: The first step in the legislative process is for one or more Council members – the "sponsor(s)" – to introduce a bill. A "motion to introduce the bill" must be approved by a simple majority of Council (nine members). As a courtesy to the sponsor(s) of a bill, Council members typically approve the motion, even if they oppose the contents of a bill. Once the motion to introduce a bill is approved, the bill will then receive an identification number and a "title," which is a short description of the purpose of the bill.



Council has a <u>searchable database</u> where you can use the identification number, title or the name of a sponsor to find bills that might interest you.

- Referring Bills to Committees: After a bill has been formally introduced, it is referred by the Council President to one of the <u>standing committees</u>. Bills are usually sent to the committee that considers matters addressed in the bill. (For example, the Committee on Labor & Civil Service considers all matters relating to labor relations, the Civil Service Commission, the city's Personnel Director and the Board of Pensions and Retirement.)
- **Public Hearings and Meetings:** Once a bill is referred to a committee and at the request of its prime sponsor(s), the committee chair may schedule a public meeting and public hearing to gather information and comments about the bill. (Hearings are not held on every bill that is introduced.) A committee may amend provisions of the bill but may not change its subject or purpose.

All committee meetings are open to members of the public – who are also permitted to speak (also known as "testifying"). City officials who wish to speak must provide written testimony 48 hours in advance of a public hearing. This requirement does not apply to other members of the public. City Council provides <u>online instructions</u> for citizens who wish to speak.

Committee meetings and hearings must be announced five days in advance, except for zoning district changes, which must be announced 15 days in advance. Announcements must include the title of the bills under consideration, as well as the time and place of the hearing. They must also be advertised in the three city newspapers with the largest paid daily circulations. Announcements are also posted at the office of the Chief Clerk.

Finally, notices of the time, date and place of public meetings to determine committee actions on bills must be advertised not less than three days before the meeting in a newspaper of general circulation.

Public hearings are broadcast on a local cable channel and can be viewed <u>live online</u>. City Council also publishes <u>transcripts</u> of the hearings and keeps a <u>video catalog</u> of past hearings.

• **Reporting on a Bill:** Committees are responsible for taking actions on referred bills. The committee may approve or disapprove a bill or withdraw the bill from consideration at



the request of the sponsor(s). Before a vote is taken, there must be a "quorum," which means a majority of members who serve on the committee must be in the room. Action requires the votes of a majority of the committee members present.

After the committee votes on a bill, the committee chair reports on the action decided by the committee to the full Council at its next scheduled meeting. Notice of bills reported from committees must be advertised by title at least five days before the bill comes up for "final consideration" by the full Council. (We will describe what this means shortly.)

Reports are "nonbinding" – which means that the full Council is not required to follow the decision of a committee. A bill that has been disapproved in committee may still be placed on the calendar by a majority vote of Council (nine members).

- First Reading: Once a committee has reported a bill back to the full Council, a member of Council must call for the bill to be placed on the "First Reading Calendar." If there are no objections, the bill will be placed on the first reading calendar for the next scheduled full Council meeting. At that meeting, the title of the bill will be read along with all other bills on the First Reading Calendar and Council members must vote to approve the first reading. (Note that "reading" doesn't mean the entire bill is read; instead the bill's title is read aloud by the Chief Clerk.)
- Second Reading: After a bill passes the first reading, a Council member must call for the bill to be placed on the "Second Reading Calendar" within the next four scheduled sessions of the full Council. (If no Council members ask to put the bill on the Second Reading Calendar, the bill will be sent back to committee). If this motion is approved (which it virtually always does as a matter of procedural routine), the bill is placed on the "Second Reading and Final Passage Calendar" for the next scheduled meeting.
- Amending a Bill: After a bill is read for a second time, Council members may introduce amendments to the bill. If a bill is amended, it is then placed on the "Final Passage Calendar" at the next scheduled full Council meeting. If a bill is not amended, it can be voted on at the same meeting at which the second reading occurs.
- **Final Passage:** Final votes on bills are taken by asking each member to vote "aye" or "nay," with the president casting the final vote. To pass, a bill must be approved by a simple majority vote (nine members). However, if the bill proposes to add to, or amend, the <u>Philadelphia Home Rule Charter</u>, a supermajority vote (12 members) is required. Votes that end in a tie do not pass.



• The Mayor: Once City Council has voted to approve a bill, it must certified by the signature of the Council President, attested by the Chief Clerk, and then sent to the Mayor within three days of final passage. If the Mayor signs the bill, or does nothing for 10 days, the bill becomes law. If the Mayor disapproves (or "vetoes") the bill, it is sent back to Council. Council has ten days to decide whether to put the bill to a vote again. If a supermajority of Council (12 members) approve the bill, it becomes law without the Mayor's approval. This is known as "overriding a veto."

Resolutions

Resolutions are another form of legislation that must be approved by City Council, but they differ from bills in that they deal only with Council-related matters that don't affect other parts of government, such as setting up the rules or organization of Council or authorizing investigations by Council committees (See section below). Often, resolutions are used for purely ceremonial purposes, such as congratulating successful Philadelphia residents and organizations or for honoring important guests.

To start, a resolution must be printed and distributed to all members of Council 24 hours in advance of the meeting at which it is to be introduced. Next, there must be a motion to formally introduce the resolution in Council. Once introduced, the resolution can be referred to a committee and follow the steps described above for consideration of bills. Alternatively, at the discretion of the Council President, the <u>Rules of Council</u> can be "suspended" and Council can vote for final approval in the same meeting at which the resolution is introduced. (This is often what happens with non-controversial ceremonial resolutions.)

Like bills, resolutions are also subject to amendments from other Council members. The mayor plays no role in these resolutions and does not have to sign or veto them.

Inquiries and Investigations

City Council has the power to conduct special hearings, called inquiries or investigations, to gather information to aid its legislative work. A resolution authorizing an investigation must first be passed by a majority vote (nine members). Once approved, the investigation may be carried out by either the full Council or by one of the <u>standing committees</u>. Like Council meetings, all hearings for investigations are open to the public, except when a committee enters executive session.



Council's power to authorize inquiries or investigation can have an effect on the budget. For example, Council can hold hearings to bring to light what it believes are unmet needs or to challenge the mayor's priorities or to address improved procedures for providing services. Although City Council cannot directly compel the mayor to spend funds if he or she is reluctant to do so, the hearings can shed light on the mayor's decision.

The Council President (if a hearing is before the full Council) or the committee chair (if the hearing is before a committee) has the power to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of documents. However, Council does not have the power of courts to enforce laws, prosecute crimes, or render verdicts.

Planning City Finances

City Council plays a crucial role in creating the financial plans for how the city will raise and spend money. The city of Philadelphia does not actually have just one pool of money controlled by a single annual budget; it has several separate budgets designated for different purposes. The three most important budgets, which account for roughly \$10 billion annually, are the Operating Budget, the Capital Budget, and the Philadelphia School District Budget. (A few smaller budgets cover specific operations, such as the airport).

The <u>Operating Budget</u> is the main financial plan for the operations of city government during a fiscal year. The Fiscal Year 2014 Operating Budget – which runs from July 1, 2013 to June 30, 2014 – is almost \$4 billion. It covers all city services for residents and taxpayers, such as collecting trash, repairing roads, putting police and firefighters on the streets, and running social welfare agencies. (The city may also get some federal and state funds to help with certain services). It also covers salaries and benefits for most of the city's 25,000 employees.

The <u>Capital Budget</u> – which in FY2015 proposal totals around \$3 billion – primarily includes what the city thinks it needs to invest in its physical environment, such as constructing roads and buildings, improving the airport and buying and maintaining city property. (The capital budget includes only construction and renovation; the day-to-day operation of facilities is part of the operating budget.) The capital budget is prepared and maintained in the same way as the regular operating budget.

The <u>School District Budget</u> covers the operations of the School District of Philadelphia, which operates the city's public schools. The School District has close to the same number of employees (24,000) and a budget of \$2.4 billion in FY2014 (combining local, state, and federal money).



The School District's budget is prepared and approved by a five-member body called the <u>School</u> <u>Reform Commission</u>. Only two of these members are appointed by the mayor; the other three are gubernatorial appointees. Nevertheless, its budget must be reviewed by City Council. Council is responsible for authorizing the taxes that support the public schools. Fifty-five percent of the city's real estate taxes, for example, go to the School District. The schools also get a small amount of money from the city's operating budget.

Passing the Annual Budget

Before taking effect at the start of each fiscal year on July 1, the annual Operating Budget must pass through the hands of both the mayor and City Council.

The mayor is responsible for crafting the initial financial plan for the general fund operating budget and presenting it to Council. The proposed budget outlines how much the Mayor would like to spend on each city department and function. It also includes a vitally important number – how much revenue the mayor and his appointed <u>Finance Director</u> estimate the city will bring in during the fiscal year from taxes, aid from the state and federal government, and other forms of income such as fees and interest. This estimate is very important since it sets the upper limit of how much money the city may spend. By law, the city budget must be balanced, which means it cannot spend more than it takes in.

The mayor must present the annual budget to City Council at least 90 days before the final budget is due (on June 30 of each year). The presentation usually happens, accompanied by the mayor's budget address, in February or March. This gives City Council and the mayor plenty of time to come to an agreement. The full Council, rather than a committee of Council, considers the operating budget, capital budget and School District budgets.

Throughout April and May, Council holds hearings to hear the details on proposed spending by virtually every taxpayer-funded unit of city government, including the Mayor's Office, city departments, commissions, boards and agencies, SEPTA, the independently elected row offices and the School District of Philadelphia. Only City Council itself does not have to face questions about its budget. Its annual operating appropriation is enacted into law when Council enacts the entire city operating budget for the upcoming fiscal year.

Council members may make changes to the mayor's budget, including the way money is spent. However, Council may not increase the mayor's estimate of incoming revenue. By May 31, Council must pass its version of the budget and send it back to the mayor.

By June 30, the last day of the fiscal year, the mayor must approve, veto, or decline to sign the



budget. Like bills, a mayoral veto can be overridden by a supermajority (12 members). If the mayor does nothing – refusing to either sign or veto – the budget goes into effect automatically.

Once approved by City Council and the mayor, the <u>budget</u> (as part of a five-year plan), must be approved by an agency called the <u>Pennsylvania Intergovernmental Cooperation Authority</u> (PICA). PICA, which was created during the city's fiscal crisis in 1991 to provide oversight and additional funding through bonds, has five members – one appointed by the Governor of Pennsylvania and one each by the Republican and Democratic leaders in the state Senate and House. The state's Budget Secretary and the city's Finance Director are also members of PICA, but they don't vote on the city's budget.

Budget Work Year-Round

After the budget process is completed, and the fiscal year gets underway, City Council continues to play a significant role in city's finances. Although the <u>Philadelphia Home Rule</u> <u>Charter</u> prohibits increasing the <u>total</u> appropriation in the original operating budget, funds can be transferred from one city department or agency to another city department or agency. A "transfer ordinance" can be requested by the mayor, or introduced on Council's own initiative. Although Council must approve all transfer ordinances, it cannot authorize a transfer in the last four months of a fiscal year unless recommended by the mayor.

Under the Home Rule Charter, Council must also approve <u>all</u> contracts for leasing property or for purchasing goods and services that are for a term of more than one year. Additionally, Council must also approve <u>every</u> proposed purchase (and sale) of real property by the city.

Chapter 5 - What are Full City Council Meetings like?

Order of Business at a Full Council Meeting

A typical <u>Council meeting</u> has the following routine:

- 1. Opening prayer: Delivered by the designated City Council Chaplain or an invited guest clergy member.
- **2.** Review of records from the previous full Council meeting. Council members may offer amendments.



- 3. Applications for leaves of absence by Council members from future meetings.
- **4.** Reading of communications by the Chief Clerk. Communications typically include letters and reports from the mayor.
- **5.** Introduction of new bills and resolutions by the Chief Clerk. Non-controversial resolutions can be voted on.
- **6.** Referrals of introduced bills and resolutions to <u>standing committees</u> by the Council President.
- **7.** Reports by the chairs of standing committees on bills and resolutions considered by their committees, along with recommendations for action by the full Council.
- **8.** Special business: Council conducts internal business, including confirming appointments to city boards and commissions or to state authorities.
- **9.** First Reading: The Chief Clerk reads the title of bills and resolutions on the First Reading Calendar.
- 10. Second Reading and Final Passage: The Chief Clerk reads the title of bills and resolutions on the Second Reading and Final Passage Calendar. City Council members can offer amendments. Bills that are not amended can be voted on at this meeting. Bills that are amended will be considered for final passage at the next scheduled full Council meeting. The <u>Rules of Council</u> provide that bills or resolutions on the Final Passage Calendar are considered before those on the Second Reading and Final Passage Calendar because they are older.
- 11. Bills on final passage recalled from the mayor: The Clerk reads bills vetoed by the mayor. A Council member may call for the bill to be put to a vote again. If a supermajority vote (12 members) to override the mayor's veto, the bill becomes law.
- 12. Adjournment.

Public Participation in Full Council Meetings

City Council meets for scheduled sessions on Thursdays at 10am in City Hall room 400. You can check Council's <u>calendar online</u> (phila.legistar.com/Calendar) for the next session. Special



meetings, called by the Council President, need approval from at least five members and all members must be informed at least 48 hours in advance (not including Sundays.)

If the full Council is holding a properly advertised meeting, members of the public and government officials are permitted to testify. In addition, as of December 2010, Philadelphia residents and taxpayers may comment for up to three minutes on any bill or resolution on the meeting's Second Reading and Final Passage calendar.

People wishing to comment should <u>register</u> with the Chief Clerk's office in advance.



Resources

The Committee of Seventy

www.seventy.org

Eight Penn Center 1628 John F. Kennedy Boulevard, Suite 1002 Philadelphia, PA 19103 (215) 557-3600

Philadelphia

Philadelphia County Board of Elections

www.philadelphiavotes.com City Hall, Room 142 Philadelphia, PA19107 (215) 686-3943

Philadelphia Voter Registration Office

www.philadelphiavotes.com 520 N. Delaware Avenue 5th Floor (Delaware Ave. and Spring Garden St.) Philadelphia, PA 19123 (215) 686-1591

Philadelphia Board of Ethics

www.phila.gov/ethicsboard One Parkway Building 1515 Arch Street, 18th Floor Philadelphia, Pennsylvania 19102 (215) 686-9450

The Democratic County Executive Committee of Philadelphia

www.citycommittee.org

219 Spring Garden Street Philadelphia, PA19123 (215) 241-7800

Green Party of Philadelphia

<u>www.gpop.org</u> PO Box 58021 Philadelphia, PA 19102 (215) 243-7103

Philadelphia Libertarian Party

www.lpphilly.org chair@lpphilly.org

Philadelphia Republican City Committee

www.phillygop.com

The Windsor, lower level 1700 Benjamin Franklin Parkway Philadelphia, PA 19103-2790 (215) 561-0650



Pennsylvania

The Pennsylvania Department of State, Bureau of Elections, Commissions and Legislation

www.dos.state.pa.us

210 North Office Building Harrisburg, Pennsylvania 17120 (717) 787-5280

For a complete listing of county Boards of Elections across Pennsylvania, visit <u>www.votespa.com</u>.

Pennsylvania Democratic Party 205 State Street Harrisburg, PA 17101

(717) 920-8470 www.padems.com

Republican Party of Pennsylvania 112 State Street Harrisburg, PA 17101 (717) 234-4901 www.pagop.org